



## General Assembly

## ORAL REVISIONS

Distr.: Limited  
18 March 2016

Original: English

Elena Kountouri Ta..., 3/24/2016 2:30 PM  
Formatted: Font:22 pt

## Human Rights Council

## Thirty-first session

## Agenda item 3

Promotion and protection of all human rights, civil,  
political, economic, social and cultural rights,  
including the right to development

Albania, Australia,\* Austria,\* Belgium, Bosnia and Herzegovina\*, Botswana, Bulgaria,\* Canada,\* Costa Rica,\* Croatia\*, Cyprus\*, Czech Republic,\* Denmark,\* El Salvador, Estonia,\* Finland,\* France, Georgia, Germany, Ghana, Greece\*, Honduras,\* Hungary,\* Iceland,\* Ireland,\* Israel,\* Italy,\* Japan, Latvia, Liechtenstein,\* Lithuania,\* Luxembourg,\* Malta,\* Montenegro,\* Morocco, Netherlands, New Zealand,\* Norway,\* Panama, Paraguay, Peru,\* Poland,\* Portugal, Republic of Korea, Republic of Moldova,\* Romania,\* San Marino\*, Slovakia,\* Slovenia, Spain,\* State of Palestine,\* Sweden, Switzerland, The Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia, Tunisia,\* Turkey,\* Ukraine,\* United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United States of America\*, Uruguay\*: draft resolution

### 31/... The promotion and protection of human rights in the context of peaceful protests

*The Human Rights Council,*

*Reaffirming* the purposes and principles of the Charter of the United Nations,

*Reaffirming also* the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, and recalling the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights and the International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights, and other relevant international and regional human rights treaties,

*Recalling* the Vienna Declaration and Programme of Action,

*Recalling also* its decision 17/120 of 17 June 2011 and its resolutions 19/35 of 23 March 2012, 22/10 of 21 March 2013 and 25/38 of 28 March 2014, on the promotion and protection of human rights in the context of peaceful protests,

*Recalling further* that States have the primary responsibility for the promotion and protection of human rights and fundamental freedoms, including in the context of assemblies, and to ensure that national legislation, policies and practices, as the

\* Non-member State of the Human Rights Council.



national framework for the exercise of the rights to freedom of peaceful assembly, of expression and of association, are in compliance with international human rights law.

1. *Calls upon* all States to promote a safe and enabling environment for individuals and groups to exercise their rights to freedom of peaceful assembly, of expression and of association, recalls that all States have the responsibility in all circumstances, including in the context of peaceful protests, to promote, respect and protect human rights and to prevent human rights violations, including extrajudicial, summary or arbitrary executions, arbitrary arrest and detention, enforced disappearances, torture and other cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment, and sexual violence, and calls upon States to avoid the abuse of criminal and civil proceedings or threats of such acts at all times;

2. *Underlines* the necessity to address the management of assemblies, including peaceful protests, so as to contribute to their peaceful conduct, and to prevent loss of life and injuries to protesters, bystanders, those monitoring such protests and officials exercising law enforcement duties, as well as any human rights violation or abuse, to ensure accountability for such violations and abuses and to provide victims with access to a remedy and redress;

3. *Takes note with appreciation* of the compilation of practical recommendations for the proper management of assemblies based on best practices and lessons learned prepared by the Special Rapporteur on the rights to freedom of peaceful assembly and association and the Special Rapporteur on extrajudicial, summary or arbitrary executions,<sup>1</sup> in which they provide an analysis of the human rights involved before, during and after an assembly, including the rights to freedom of peaceful assembly, of expression, of association, and of religion or belief, the right to participation in the conduct of public affairs, the right to life, liberty and security of person, the right to be free from torture and cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment, as well as the right to an effective remedy for all human rights violations, and the respect for human dignity, bodily integrity, and privacy;

4. ~~*Strongly Encourages* all States to give due consideration to **Human Rights Council resolution 25/38** and to the above mentioned compilation of practical recommendations for the proper management of assemblies based on best practices and lessons learned prepared by the Special Rapporteur on the rights to freedom of peaceful assembly and of association and the Special Rapporteur on extrajudicial, summary or arbitrary executions, which provides a useful guidance tool for States on how to fulfil their obligations and commitments, including on how to operationalize them in their domestic laws, procedures and practices, to promote and protect human rights, in the context of assemblies, including peaceful protests;~~

5. *Reaffirms* that all States must ensure that their domestic legislation and procedures relating to the rights to freedom of peaceful assembly, of expression and of association and to the use of force in the context of law enforcement are in conformity with their international obligations and commitments and effectively implemented, and must provide proper training for officials exercising law enforcement duties, including in the use of protective equipment and of less-lethal weapons;

6. *Encourages* all States to engage at the national and regional levels with relevant stakeholders, including assembly organizers, human rights defenders, civil society actors, national human rights institutions, as well as business enterprises and regional

<sup>1</sup> A/HRC/31/66.

Fontana Barbara E..., 3/23/2016 8:04 PM  
Deleted: e

Fontana Barbara E..., 3/23/2016 8:05 PM  
Deleted:

Fontana Barbara E..., 3/23/2016 8:05 PM  
Deleted: to

Fontana Barbara E..., 3/23/2016 8:06 PM  
Deleted: in such

Fontana Barbara E..., 3/23/2016 8:06 PM  
Deleted: s

Fontana Barbara E..., 3/23/2016 8:06 PM  
Deleted: , as well as how to operationalize them in their domestic laws, procedures and practices

human rights mechanisms, on the management of assemblies, including, as appropriate, any follow-up to the compilation of practical recommendations;

7. *Stresses* the importance of international cooperation in support of national efforts for the promotion and protection of human rights and fundamental freedoms in the context of assemblies in order to raise the capacities of law enforcement agencies to deal with such assemblies in a manner that conforms to their international human rights obligations and commitments;

8. *Invites* States to seek relevant technical assistance, including from the Office of the United Nations High Commissioner for Human Rights, the United Nations Office on Drugs and Crime and from other specialized agencies where appropriate, from relevant special procedures of the Human Rights Council and from regional human rights mechanisms;

9. *Invites* all States to consider making recommendations, as appropriate, to States under review, in the context of the universal periodic review, on the management of assemblies and the promotion and protection of human rights in such contexts;

10. *Encourages* the Special Rapporteur on the rights to freedom of peaceful assembly and of association, the Special Rapporteur on extrajudicial, summary or arbitrary executions and other relevant special procedures of the Human Rights Council, as appropriate, in the framework of their mandates, to continue to address in their work, the management of assemblies and the promotion and protection of human rights in such contexts;

11. *Decides* to remain seized of the matter.

---